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Ms. Nicole Gaudette, Senior Planner 
Community Planning & Development 
City of Mercer Island 
9611 SE 36th Street 
Mercer Island, WA 98040 
 
 
 
REFERENCE: Hou Critical Areas Determination 
FILE NOS.:              CAO17-010 and SEP19-003, Ecology SEPA #201900882 
SUBJECT: Response to City of Mercer Island Comment Letter  

 
Dear Nicole: 
We are writing in response to recent City of Mercer Island comments concerning the 0.53-acre 
Hou Property (King County Tax Parcel 2162000070).    
This letter will specifically respond to comments provided by Ms. Tracy Nishikawa, SEPA 
Coordinator, on 21 March 2019.  We are providing the text of Ms. Nishikawa’s comments 
verbatim below in bold and our responses follow immediately in italic text. 
Ecology would regulate the wetland as a water of the state subject to the applicable 
requirements of state law (see RCW 90.48 and WAC 173.201A) and Section 401 of the 
Clean Water Act (33 USC §1341) and 40 CFR Section 121.2. We are concerned about the 
buffer encroachment and do not support building the house so close to the wetland. This 
is not consistent with Ecology guidance on buffer widths in Wetland Mitigation in 
Washington State – Part 1: Agency Policies and Guidance (Publication #06-06-011a). 

The wetland onsite rated as a Category III wetland (with low habitat score) based on DOE 
Publication #04-06-025 (dated August 2004), as outlined in the Mercer Island City Code (MICC) 
Section 19.16.010, Definitions, for “Wetland Classification System.”  This rating has been 
approved by the City of Mercer Island through their 3rd party review consultant, ESA 
(Environmental Science Associates consulting firm).  This same wetland rated as a Category IV 
slope wetland (with a habitat score of 6) when the rating forms from the most recent wetland 
rating system, DOE Publication #14-06-029 dated October 2014 (attached)).  As ESA stated 
within their report “City of Mercer Island Critical Areas Ordinance (CAO) Update” dated October 
2018, the City’s current code references are outdated for the wetland rating system and 
applicable buffers (pages 15 and 17 of the document PDF).  The current MICC only requires a 
50-foot standard buffer width for a Category III wetland (minimum buffer of 25 feet) with no 
consideration given for land use. This buffer under current best available science (BAS) as 
outlined by DOE and reflected in the ESA Report would be 40 feet with a moderate intensity 
land use, consistent with the larger lot single-family residential properties in this area.  
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Therefore, the baseline standard buffer for this wetland would be narrower if current BAS, based 
on DOE guidance, were followed than what is required by the current MICC.   

That said, the wetland buffer is being reduced to 25 feet for a short segment, with some buffer 
give-back provided in conjunction with vegetative enhancement of the remaining buffers to 
compensate for the reduced buffers.  This is necessary to provide a buildable area on this lot 
that would otherwise be undevelopable.  This parcel and associated critical areas are located 
within the boundaries of the City of Mercer Island, a relatively densely developed jurisdiction 
considering it is mostly single-family residences.  The presence of critical areas cannot preclude 
development on this lot as it is zoned for residential use and is surrounded by single-family 
residences.  Every step has been taken to avoid direct impacts to the wetland, to minimize 
indirect impacts to the wetland as much as possible given the development constraints on this 
Site, and to mitigate for the anticipated indirect impacts from the reduced buffer.  No further 
modifications to this wetland buffer are anticipated, nor are any changes proposed as a 
response to this question. 

In summary, wetland buffers are required to follow the MICC which does not reflect current DOE 
guidance.  However, buffers required by the MICC are greater than what would be required 
based on a current rating and applying the current BAS for this type and size of wetland.  
Wetland functions are being protected and the area of buffer reduction to accommodate a 
development footprint for this parcel is being mitigated for onsite through give-back of additional 
area as buffer and vegetatively enhancing the post-construction buffer.   

We trust that the information presented in this letter is sufficient to address the concerns raised 
by Ms. Nishikawa. 

If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact me at (425) 861-
7550. 

Sincerely, 

TALASAEA CONSULTANTS, INC. 

 
Jennifer Marriott, PWS  
Senior Wetland Ecologist 

 

Attachment:  Wetland Rating Forms – 2004 and 2014  
















































